
 PRINCETON                  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF PRINCETON 

MINUTES ● AUGUST 16, 2017 

 Extra Meeting Community Room 8:00 AM 

  400 Witherspoon Street, Princeton, NJ 08540 

Princeton Page 1   

I. STATEMENT CONCERNING NOTICE OF MEETING 

The following is an accurate statement concerning the providing of notice of this meeting 

and said statement shall be entered in the minutes of this meeting.  Notice of this meeting 

as required by Sections 4a, 3d, 13 and 14 of the Open Public Meetings Act has been 

provided to the public in the form of a written notice. On January 10, 2017 at 9:00 a.m., 

said schedule was posted on the official bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 

transmitted to the Princeton Packet, the Trenton Times, the Town Topics and filed with 

the Municipal Clerk. 

II. ROLL CALL 

 The Clerk called the roll. 

 

PRESENT:  Ms. Howard, Mr. Liverman, Mr. Miller, Ms. Butler, Mr. Quinn and Mayor 

Lempert 

 

ABSENT:  Ms. Crumiller 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Marc Dashield, Administrator, Jeffrey Grosser, Assistant 

Administrator and Lucille Davey, Assistant Municipal Attorney, Mason, Griffin and 

Pierson. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The audience participated in the pledge of allegiance. 

IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mayor Lempert announced that this meeting is not being posted live but being recorded 

by TV 30.   She also added that today's meeting is a work session and that no decision 

will be made today and that this will be continued at regular Council Meeting in 

September.  

V. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

John Bailey thanked Council and everyone involved in making the annual Safe Streets 

Neighborhood Event such a success. 

VI. WORK SESSION 

Mr. Dashield began by saying that Mr. Hillier approached Council in November of 2016 

and requested a modification of the Waxwood Developers Agreement to convert all the 

units to rentals.  The original agreement called for Mr. Hillier to sell three affordable 

units and five "foundation" units earmarked for long-time residents of the Historic 

Witherspoon-Jackson Neighborhood as condominiums. Mr. Hillier is requesting to be 

released from this agreement and to be allowed to operate the units as rentals 

permanently.   Under the terms of the current agreement, if Council takes no action the 



Minutes Mayor and Council August 16, 2017 

Princeton Page 2   

units are required to be sold as condominium units, the foundation units would be sold at 

market rate and subsidized at 20% and the affordable units will be sold at either a 

moderate or low income price.  

 

Mr. Hillier reviewed with Council the three options he is proposing to amend the 

developer’s agreement. (Proposal attached.)  

 

Mr. Hillier said that he recently sold the property to a developer and signed a 15 year 

master lease and he will act as a master tenant of the development, he said it is a common 

refinancing options and it acts like a mortgage.  

 

Mr. Liverman asked if the 15 year lease can last longer.  Mr. Hillier responded that yes it 

can last longer.  Ms. Butler asked if the owner is required to fulfill whatever agreement is 

currently on the books and asked when was the property sold.  Mr. Hillier responded that 

yes the new owner would honor the agreement and that the property was sold in March of 

2017.   Ms. Howard asked what is the mechanism for binding the current owner to 

keeping the units affordable.  Mr. Tarr, Esq., Attorney for Mr. Hillier responded that the 

current owner is bound by the agreement.  

 

Council reviewed with Mr. Hillier and Mr. Tarr the three options he is proposing. 

 

John Bailey, said he supports Mr. Hillier's proposal and that the Municipality needs to 

work as a partnership with Mr. Hillier.  

 

Michael Floyd, 35 Quarry Street, said he thinks Mr. Hillier is genuine in his proposal and 

is concerned that if Council eliminated the 10 year residency requirement on purchasing 

units that the Waxwood would end up with non Witherspoon-Jackson neighborhood 

tenant's and strongly feels that should not be removed.  He said he had an interest in 

purchasing but that the $400,000 appraisal seemed high and that the appraisal should be 

made public and added that true affordability is a concern whether for sale or rental. He 

added that he does think there are some good points in the options offered but that he has 

to be comfortable with the appraised value whether $300,000 or $400,000.  

 

Mr. Dashield said that the Foundation Units are valued at $400,000, but because they are 

restricted to the Witherspoon-Jackson neighborhood the value is actually $310,000, and 

adding the 20% discount makes the price approximately $250,000. 

 

Robert Lytle, Esq., representing George Cumberbatch a resident of the Waxwoods 

reviewed with Council his letter sent to them on August 15, 2017.  He noted that Mr. 

Cumberbatch is unavailable to attend the meeting and requested that Council extend their 

decision on this item until September.  He said he encourages Council not to ignore the 

fact that for some amending the developer's agreement may be a benefit but it may also 

be a burden to others and that time needs to be taken to evaluate where to go.  (Letter 

attached).  

 



Minutes Mayor and Council August 16, 2017 

Princeton Page 3   

Yina Moore, 19 Green Street, said people expected to be given the right to purchase their 

units and that the Foundation Units not being designated as affordable housing in the 

beginning was a flaw in the original agreement and she thinks there are still issues that 

need to be discussed and that the three options proposed do not meet the intent of the 

original developer’s agreement and more work is needed.  

 

Mildred Trotman, 181 Witherspoon Street, said she supports the proposal Mr. Hillier has 

presented and added that she supports a 10 year residency preference requirement.  

 

Dosier Hammond, 87 Leigh Avenue, said he thinks the Princeton preference should stay 

in place and the units not go into COAH housing, he said to keep part or all units to be 

local preference. 

 

Sharon Campbell, 86 Leigh Avenue, said she supports Mr. Hillier's proposal and is also 

in full support of the Princeton preference and a 10 year residency requirement.  

 

Hendricks Davis, 232 John Street, asked Council what will the process be in making a 

decision.  Mayor Lempert responded that since Council had a request that the issue come 

back to Council in September, she suggested the issue to be heard at the Council meeting 

of September 25, 2017.  

 

After discussion by Council concerning the proposed three options Mr. Hillier presented, 

Council requested the following issues be addressed for the September 25, 2017 Council 

meeting: 

 

1.  What current tenants want to buy and the status of those negotiations  

2.  Definition of qualified neighborhood resident 

3.  What is the demand in the neighborhood 

4.  Option B and the $400,000 cash contribution - what are the options to use this money 

5.  Report on liens on the properties in the neighborhood 

6.  Is using the Princeton preference discriminatory 

7.  Require in writing from the new owner that he will abide by the terms of Councils 

decision. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

A motion to adjourn at 10:00 a.m. was made by Mr. Liverman, seconded by Mr. Miller 

and carried unanimously by those present. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathleen K. Brzezynski 




















